
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 10, 2020 

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton 
Unified School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until 
further notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook 
page or through the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84814290530?pwd=cXd1Wi9JTHZVNm91aVJJWG9XNWNnZz09 
 

Meeting ID: 848 1429 0530 
Password: 8X8AuD 
Or Dial by phone: +1 312 626 6799 
Meeting ID: 848 1429 0530 
Password: 016839 
 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call 

 
_______Gabriel Leal, President  _______Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk _______Rod Boone 
_______Genaro Reyes   _______Ray Odom 

 

2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 

 
4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters 

a. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 
approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:   

 
6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

 
7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

 
8.0 ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Resolution 19-20-109: 2024 ASB Funds Transfer (page 2) 
b. Resolution 19-20-110: 2020 Senior Class ASB Funds Transfer (page 3) 

 

9.0  OPEN PUBLIC HEARING: 
a. 2020-2021 Local Control Accountability Plan – COVID-19 Emergency Response (page 5) 
b. 2020-2021 District Budget  (Summary page 7) 

 
10.0   ADJOURNMENT: 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84814290530?pwd%3DcXd1Wi9JTHZVNm91aVJJWG9XNWNnZz09&sa=D&ust=1591208832083000&usg=AOvVaw1qXS-4LEyItB5ElErFv3TV


HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION #19-20-109 
 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH PROCEDURES FOR TRANSFER OF ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY FUNDS 
FOR GRADUATION ACTIVITIES AFFECTED BY THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER N-33-20 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of a school district may authorize activities of student 
organizations under Education Code sections 48930-48938; 

 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s shelter in place order due to COVID-19 has disrupted student 

activities, including the graduation of the 8th grade class of 2020; 
 
WHEREAS, students have raised funds for graduation and other activities that now cannot take 

place before the end of the 2019-2020 school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, associated student body funds may only be spent on current students of the District; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Hamilton Unified School 
District, as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The Board hereby finds and determines the foregoing recitals to be true and 
correct. 

 
2. Without setting a precedent for future school closures, the Board hereby authorizes transfer 

to the Hamilton High School associated student body (“ASB”) account of any Hamilton 
Elementary School ASB funds raised by the Hamilton Elementary School class of 2020 for the 
purpose of funding Hamilton Elementary School 2020 graduation activities and held in the 
Hamilton Elementary School ASB class account.  It is further resolved that the transferred 
funds will be held in a distinctly identified account and the funds will only be spent on 
graduation activities for the students of the Hamilton High School class of 2024 at any time 
prior to June 30, 2024. 

 
3. The Board further resolves that any of the remaining money in the distinctly identified ASB 

account will be designated by the Hamilton High School class of 2024 as a gift to the school, 
and that any money remaining in the distinctly identified ASB account on July 1, 2024 will be 
transferred to the ASB general account. 

 
APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified School District this 
10th day of June 2020, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:     ABSENT:  
NOES:     ABSTAIN: 
 

I, __________________________, Clerk of the Board, hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a special meeting thereof, held at its regular 
place of meeting on the date shown above and by the vote as stated, which resolution is on file in the 
office of said Board. 
 

Signed:   ____________________________ 

Page 2



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION # 19-20-110 
 

RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT AND PERSERVERENCE DURING DIFFICULT 
AND UNPRECEDENTED CIRCUMSTANCES THROUGH INDIVIDUALIZED HIGH SCHOOL 

GRADUATION ACTIVITIES FOR STUDENTS AFFECTED BY THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER N-33-20 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education (“Board”) of the Hamilton Unified School District (“District”) may 
authorize activities of student organizations under Education Code sections 48930-48938; 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s shelter in place order due to COVID-19 has disrupted student activities, 
including the graduation of the 12th grade class of 2020; 

 
WHEREAS, District students have raised funds for graduation and other activities that now cannot 

take place before the end of the 2019-2020 school year;  
 

WHEREAS, associated student body funds may only be spent on current students of the District;  
 
WHEREAS, District policy permits associated student body funds to be used on activities that 

promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experiences of the student body; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of the District desires to recognize achievement, perseverance, and the 

completion of the 2019-2020 school year by the 12th grade class of 2020 under unprecedented and 
difficult circumstances related to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Hamilton Unified School 
District, as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The Board hereby finds and determines the foregoing recitals to be true and 
correct. 

 
2. Without setting future precedent, the Board hereby authorizes the distribution in equal 

apportionments of the remaining unspent funds in the Hamilton High School associated 
student body (“ASB”) account to each current 12th grade Hamilton High School student.  It is 
further resolved that the distributed funds are intended to recognize the completion of the 
2019-2020 school year under extremely difficult circumstances by allowing students to 
celebrate their achievements in an alternative, individualized setting in lieu of a class event 
in light of current social distancing and shelter-in-place orders.   

 
3. The Board further resolves that any of the remaining money in the distinctly identified ASB 

account will be designated by the Hamilton High School class of 2020 as a gift to the school, 
and that any money remaining in the distinctly identified ASB account on July 1, 2020, will be 
transferred to the ASB general account. 

            
  

Page 3



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION # 19-20-110 
 

RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT AND PERSERVERENCE DURING DIFFICULT 
AND UNPRECEDENTED CIRCUMSTANCES THROUGH INDIVIDUALIZED HIGH SCHOOL 

GRADUATION ACTIVITIES FOR STUDENTS AFFECTED BY THE SHELTER IN PLACE ORDER N-33-20 
 

   
APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Education of the Hamilton Unified School District this 
10th day of June 2020, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 

I, __________________________, Clerk of the Board, hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a special meeting thereof, held at its regular 
place of meeting on the date shown above and by the vote as stated, which resolution is on file in the 
office of said Board. 
 

Signed:   ____________________________ 

Page 4



COVID-19 Operations Written Report 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) 
Name 

Contact Name and Title Email and Phone Date of Adoption 

Hamilton Unified School District Jeremy Powell, Ed.D (530) 826-3261 June 24, 2020 

Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of the changes 
your LEA has put in place. LEAs are strongly encouraged to provide descriptions that do not exceed 300 words. 

Provide an overview explaining the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school closures to address the COVID-
19 emergency and the major impacts of the closures on students and families. 

In response to school closures to address the COVID-19 emergency, the Hamilton Unified School District adopted utilized a remote/distance 
learning strategy to provide ongoing academic and social/emotional support.  The goal is to provide a robust and engaging, remote learning 
education for the students of Hamilton Unified School District.  The primary focus was to provide Social/Emotional Support for our students and 
their families with academic support and instruction following. Academically, our focus has been to build towards mastery in ELA and Math 
Common Core State Standards; the secondary focus is to master the Next Generation Science Standards and Social Studies Standards.  We 
also worked to ensure all A-G requirements for our high school students remained in place. 

Anticipating the statewide closures, the District was in continual contact with school sites including administration, certificated, and classified 
staff.  On Monday, March 16th, District and school administration met with all site employees to discuss the closure all campuses in the Hamilton 
Unified School District effective March 17th.  During these meetings, staff was informed of the allowance of time to take care of their own needs 
and then create work for students to pick up on Monday, March 23rd.  This was done for two purposes, to allow 1) a continuation of educational 
services for all students and 2) this allowed the District time to do a needs assessment for technology needs for our staff and students.  Weekly 
meetings were held with staff that included trainings on Zoom, Google Classroom, and other remote learning applications that were being 
utilized throughout the district.  Once the District was able to meet the technology needs of all staff and students, each campus transitioned to a 
Distance Learning Model that was primarily online. 

 

To provide ongoing support for all students and families of the Hamilton Unified School District, administrators and staff have made personal 
contact with all students on a weekly basis checking in on their academic progress, and also, their overall well-being.  As needed, families were 
provided with additional emotional and psychological supports through district and county agencies as needed.   

Provide a description of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its English learners, foster youth and low-income students. 

The Hamilton Unified School District has continued to provide English Language learners and low-income students with targeted instruction and 
support services to ensure that these students are meeting and exceeding the State Standard. 

P
age 5



Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to continue delivering high-quality distance learning opportunities. 

The Hamilton Unified School District teachers have delivered high-quality distance learning opportunities to each of their students by 
maintaining personal and individualized contact with each child and providing a comprehensive learning experience.  Teachers have quickly 
adapted to the use of technology for instruction, have blended the educational activities, and have continuously assessed and provided 
feedback to each student.  Teachers are effectively utilizing Zoom Conferencing, Google Classroom, and various other platforms to impart 
instruction.  

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to provide school meals while maintaining social distancing practices. 

The Hamilton Unified School District has continued to provide meals to the community through a Grab-and-Go Drive-thru model at Hamilton 
Elementary School providing Breakfast and Lunch to students daily since our first day of closure on March 17.  

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to arrange for supervision of students during ordinary school hours.  

Due to the COVID-19 emergency closure, the Hamilton Unified School District did not find it practicable to provide supervision of students 
during ordinary school hours.   

 
California Department of Education 
May 2020 
 

P
age 6



HAMILTON UNIFIED  
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Summary of 
2020-21 Budget 

Presented at the June 10th,  2020 Special Board Meeting 

Prepared by Kristen Hamman 

P
age 7



2020-21 Budget 
General Fund Revenues  

 
 
2019-20 Estimated Actuals 

Revenues Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

LCFF Sources 7,833,272 

Federal Revenue 332,568 

Other State Revenue 518,023 

Other Local Revenue 109,577 

Total Revenues 8,793,440 

 
2020-21 Budget 

Revenues Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

LCFF Sources 7,197,888 

Federal Revenue 252,770 

Other State Revenue 483,279 

Other Local Revenue 74,840 

Total Revenues 8,008,777 

General Fund Revenues are located on Page 18 of the board packet. 

Estimated Funded ADA for 2019-20: 687.87 
 (based on 2018-19 P-2 ADA) 

Estimated Funded ADA for 2020-21: 688.32 
(based on estimated P-2 ADA for 2020-21 ) 

P
age 8



2020-21 Budget 
General Fund Expenditures  

 
 
2019-20 Estimated Actuals 

Expenditures Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Certificated Salaries 3,470,915 

Classified Salaries 1,196,522 

Employee Benefits 1,986,270 

Books & Supplies 486,374 

Services & Other 890,003 

Capital Outlay 472,555 

Other Outgo (no IC*) 826,351 

Other Outgo (IC*) (17,786) 

Total Expenditures 9,311,204 

 
2020-21 Budget 

Expenditures Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Certificated Salaries 2,944,886 

Classified Salaries 947,558 

Employee Benefits 1,658,150 

Books & Supplies 414,755 

Services & Other 896,133 

Capital Outlay 306,728 

Other Outgo (no IC*) 900,372 

Other Outgo (IC*) (17,786) 

Total Expenditures 8,050,796 

* IC = Indirect Costs; General Fund Expenditures are located on Page 18 of the board packet. 

 

P
age 9



2020-21 Budget  
General Fund changes in Fund Balance  

 
 
2019-20 Estimated Actuals 

Change in Fund 
Balance 

Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Beginning Fund Bal. 1,258,543 

Revenues 8,793,440 

Expenditures (9,311,204) 

Interfund Transfers (53,000) 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Bal. 

(570,764) 

Ending Fund Bal. 687,779 

 
2020-21 Budget 

Change in Fund 
Balance 

Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Beginning Fund Bal. 687,779 

Revenues 8,008,777 

Expenditures (8,050,796) 

Interfund Transfers (25,000) 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Bal. 

(67,019) 

Ending Fund Bal. 620,760 

General Fund changes in Fund Balance are located on Page 18 and 19 of the board packet. 

P
age 10



2020-21 Budget 
General Fund Multiyear Projections 

Description 2020-21  
Budget 

2021-22 
Projection 

2022-23 
Projection 

Beginning Fund Bal. 687,779 620,760 408,744 

Revenues 8,008,777 7,686,244 7,498,823 

Expenditures (8,050,796) (7,873,260) (8,028,301) 

Interfund Transfers (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Bal. 

(67,019) (212,016) (554,478) 
 

Ending Fund Bal. 620,760 408,744 (145,734) 

Multiyear Projections are located on Page 150 of the board packet. 

P
age 11



Other District Funds 
2020-21 Projected Ending Fund Balances 

 
• Fund 11, Adult Education (pg 31)            $    94,996 

• Fund 12, Child Development (pg 43)           $       2,159 

• Fund 13, Cafeteria Special Revenue (pg 53)          $     88,403 

• Fund 14, Deferred Maintenance (pg 63)                       $     41,968 

• Fund 17, Other Than Capital Outlay Projects (pg 73) $   392,419 

• Fund 20, Postemployment Benefits (pg 81)          $   218,795 

• Fund 21, Building - Bond (pg 89)            $1,452,597 

• Fund 25, Capital Facilities (pg 100)                       $   183,582 

• Fund 51, Bond Interest & Redemption (pg 121)          $   323,467 

P
age 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155


	BOARD AGENDA 061020 SPECIAL
	RES 19-20-109 2024 ASB funds transfer
	RES 19-20-110 2020 Senior Class ASB funds transfer
	Hamilton Unified School District COVID 19 Report.docx
	BUDGET REPORT
	BUDGET REPORT 2



